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Chairman’s Message

Dear Stakeholders,

It is a great privilege to share with you the performance highlights of FY 2019-20 and the strategic direction of our journey 
going ahead. We, Kanakadurga Finance completed 26 Years and continued to grow strongly across all parameters;

In FY 2019-20:

• The AUM has grown from 478.13 to 485.48 Crore

• The Total Income has grown at 28.85%

• The PAT is increased from 5.63 Cr to 7.23 Cr

COVID-19 pandemic has created unprecedented economic disruptions and collapse of economic activity due to constant 
lock downs. Your Management has envisaged this during the month of February and reduced fresh disbursements in March.

To mitigate the risks under the shadow of COVID-19, your Management has prepared different scenarios and contingency 
plans under each available alternative. Management is trying to reduce the Operational Expenditure to stabilize the income 
and has optimized the branches.

Your Management will take necessary steps to optimize the business in FY 2020-21, impacted with the effect of continuous 
lockdown in the first and second Quarters of the FY 2020-21 imposed by Government of India. However, your Management 
believes that economic activity will pick up from Q3 and shall strive for the best results in FY 2020-21.

To my entire Employees and Directors, I express my sincere gratitude to you for all that encouragement in tough times.

Thank you, shareholders for your wonderful support.

Stay safe

With Best Wishes,

Sd/-

Chairman



2 Annual Report 2019-20
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Committees of Board

Name of the Committee: Audit Committee

Sr. No Name of the Member Designation

1 Mr. Sandireddy Jayaprakash Narayana Chowdary Chairman

2 Mr. Venkateswarlu Unnam Member

3 Mr. Amarendra Sahoo Member

Name of the Committee: Nomination & Remuneration Committee

Sr. No Name of the Member Designation

1 Mr. Venkateswarlu Unnam Chairman

2 Mr. Amarendra Sahoo Member

3 Mr. Abhishek Poddar Member

Name of the Committee: Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Sr. No Name of the Member Designation

1 Mr. Sandireddy Srimannarayana Chairman

2 Mr. Sandireddy Jayaprakash Narayana Chowdary Member

3 Mr. Unnam Venkateswarlu Member

Name of the Committee: Internal Complaints Committee

Sr. No Name of the Member Designation

1 Mrs. Sandireddy Ratna Kumari Presiding Officer

2 Mrs. Suryadevara Sujatha Member (NGO)

3 Mr. Sandireddy Jayaprakash Narayana Chowdary Member

Name of the Committee: Finance Committee

Sr. No Name of the Member Designation

1 Mr. Sandireddy Lakshmi Narayana Chairman

2 Mrs. Sandireddy Ratna Kumari Member

3 Mr. Sandireddy Jayaprakash Narayana Chowdary Member

4 Mr. Sandireddy Srimannarayana Member
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VISION, MISSION AND VALUES:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Industry Structure and Developments 
Kanakadurga Finance Ltd. (‘KFL’ or ‘the Company’) is a non-deposit-taking Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC-B) 
registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). KFL is engaged in the business of lending and has a diversified lending 
portfolio across Financing of Vehicle and Gold Loans with a significant presence in urban and rural India. It offers a variety 
of lending services to its customers.

The COVID-19 Pandemic and Lockdown 
Global Growth continued to slowdown throughout the fiscal 2020, and further weakened in the last Quarter on account of 
the COVID-19 pandemic. The COVID-19 pandemic has spread across the world and with the lockdown imposed across the 
countries accounting for reduction of 50% of the world’s gross domestic product (GDP). With the impact of this pandemic 
factories and stores are shutdown, and literally millions became unemployed this caused extreme stress for the global 
economy. In India too, lockdown was imposed since 25 March 2020, the pandemic has created distress through society and 
the world of business. 

The domestic economy was slowing even before the COVID-19 pandemic; Decline in growth was linked to credit concerns at 
NBFCs, weak auto sales, default of major finance Companies and liquidity crisis in the market. The Indian economy has seen 
some growth momentum in the months of January and February, but that has been washed out by the COVID-19 disruptions 
with downward effects on 2020 and growth in 2021 as well. The growth will depend on the length of ongoing lock down, 
return of migrant labor to cities and pickup in the economic activity after the lifting of lockdown. 

The Government of India and RBI have acted quickly to mitigate the impact of pandemic related disruptions by reducing the 
Repo rate, taken several measures to improve liquidity in the market, credit flows to the economy, Government announced 
financial package and RBI also Permitted all lending institutions to allow a moratorium of Six months on repayment of 
installments on the term loans and interest on working capital facilities outstanding between March 1, 2020 and August 31, 
2020.

Opportunities:
Non Banking Financial Institutions are vital pillars contributing to macroeconomic stability and constant economic growth 
and prosperity, due to their ability to finance the firms and individuals at a reasonable cost, reduce volatility by providing 
multiple sources to finance. Non-Banking Finance Companies (NBFCs) continue to play a major role in making financial 
Services accessible to a wider set of India’s population and are emerging as strong intermediaries in the retail finance space. 
Phasing out of lockdown and impact of the liquidity measures will give a tremendous bounce back opportunities to the NBFC. 

Threats 
The biggest challenge before NBFCs is that they are facing rigid competition from banks and financial institutions as they have 
entered into lending segment of consumer durables and vehicle financing. Apart from this, Banks and Financial Institutions 
can raise low cost funds which enable them to provide funds at much cheaper rate than NBFC’s and more stringent capital 
adequacy norms have been stipulated by RBI for NBFCs which is making difficult for them to get/give cheaper finance. 
On the flip side, weak credit profiling of borrowers along with poor economic recovery remains one of the biggest threat. 
Beyond the immediate liquidity challenges, the key challenge for the NBFCs would be to prevent a sharp deterioration in the 
delinquency levels subsequent to the expiry of the moratorium period. While the lockdown may be gradually removed, the 
impact on the businesses of the self-employed and small borrowers is likely to be rigorous.

Segment-wise or product-wise performance of the Company 
Your Company is a Non Banking Finance Company (NBFC). Your Company’s total Revenue from Operations during the year 
was Rs. 11,835.58 Lakhs and the net profit/loss after tax is Rs. 723.04 Lakhs as against Rs. 8994.92 Lakhs and Rs. 562.84 Lakhs 
respectively in the previous year.
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Outlook 
From last week of March 2020, as COVID-19 spread rapidly, both in terms of number of cases and the affected countries, the 
World Health Organization (“WHO”) characterized COVID-19 as a pandemic. The duration, intensity and spread of the corona 
virus have brought in increased uncertainty to the global and domestic economic outlook. The path back to normality, after 
the health crisis, is likely to be slow. India’s economic growth has the potential to bounce back once the COVID-19 pandemic 
settles. 

The Company recognizes that risk is an integral and unavoidable component of business and is committed to managing 
the risk in a proactive and effective manner. In today’s challenging and competitive environment, strategies for mitigating 
inherent risks in accomplishing the growth plans of the Company are imperative. The common risks for the Company are 
financial risks, credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk etc. 

The potential impact to our results going forward will depend to a large extent on future developments regarding COVID-19 
that cannot be accurately predicted at this time, including the duration and severity of the pandemic, the extent and 
effectiveness of containment actions and the impact of these and other factors on our employees, customers and vendors.

Risk Mitigation 
Risk mitigation is an exercise of specific measures to minimize or eliminate unacceptable risk associated with operations 
of your company. Your Company believes that this would ensure mitigating risks proactively and help to achieve stated 
objectives. The NBFC industry in general faces the risk of re-entry and new entry of players and existence of several 
unorganized regional players which increases the competition mainly affects the asset quality. 

The ever existing systemic and delinquency risks and fluctuations in interest rates and risk weight make the companies 
more vulnerable. Deployment of funds in sensitive and volatile sectors increases the risk exposure while concentration risk 
increases dependency. 

Your company is aiming to reduce the loss arising out of various risk exposures and also adopts a systematic approach to 
mitigate risks associated with accomplishment of objectives, operations, revenues and regulations.

Internal Control Systems
The Company has adequate internal control systems appropriate for the business processes having regard to efficiency of 
operations and for compliance with applicable laws. The controls are reviewed periodically and strengthened in view of 
changed processes, systems and regulations. In addition, the Company goes through periodic internal audits both through 
its internal team and external auditors, which includes branch and franchisee audits as well as all operations control. All the 
audit and inspection reports are placed at the Audit Committee meetings. Key issues are specifically brought to the attention 
of the Audit Committee and deliberated in detail along with the action plan for closure. 

Human Resources 
There has been no material development on the Human Resource/ Industrial Relations front during the year. The company 
has provided medical insurance for its employees and family members as a welfare measure.
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PERFORMANCE HEIGHLIGHTS
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NOTICE TO MEMBERS
Notice is hereby given that the 26th Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at the Registered Office of the 
Company at 54-9-23, 100 Feet Road, Auto Nagar, Vijayawada - 520007 on Monday, 14th day of September, 2020 at 11:00 
A.M. to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company (for the financial year ended March 

31, 2020, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To consider appointment of a Director in place of Mr. Jayaprakash Narayana Chowdary Sandireddy (DIN: 00538246) 
who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

   For and on behalf of the Board

   Lakshmi Sowjanya Alla
Date: 20.08.2020 Company Secretary
Place: Vijayawada

Notes: -
1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting to which this notice relates is entitled to appoint a proxy to 

attend and vote (on poll) on his/her behalf. A proxy need not be a member of the company. A proxy, in order to be 
valid/ effective, must be received at the registered office of the company before the commencement of the meeting 
to which this notice relates. A blank proxy form is enclosed.

 A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in aggregate shares not more than 
10 percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent 
of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person 
shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

2.  All the documents relevant to the resolutions specified in the Notice are available for inspection by the shareholders 
of the Company at the registered office of the Company and also at the place of the meeting on the meeting day.

4. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting are requested to send 
a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representatives to attend and vote on their behalf at the 
Meeting. 

5. The Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agents for its share registry work (Physical and Electronic) are XL Softech 
Systems Ltd (RTA). 

6. Members can avail the facility of nomination in respect of securities held by them in physical form pursuant to 
the provisions of Section 72 of the Act. Members desiring to avail of this facility may send their nomination in the 
prescribed form duly filled-in to RTA. Members holding shares in electronic mode may contact their respective 
Depository Participant (DP) for availing this facility. 

7. Members are requested to – intimate to the DP, changes if any, in their registered addresses and/or changes in their 
bank account details, if the shares are held in dematerialized form, intimate to the Company’s RTA, changes if any, 
in their registered addresses, in their bank account details, if the shares are held in physical form (share certificates). 
consolidate their holdings into one folio in case they hold Shares under multiple folios in the identical order of names. 
dematerialize their Physical Shares to Electronic Form (Demat) as, dematerialization of shares would help to eliminate 
risks associated with Physical Shares. Members can contact Registrar and Transfer Agents viz., XL Softech Systems Ltd, 
No 3, Sagar Society, Road No 2, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad, Telangana, 500034 (Tel. No. 040-23545913 & E-mail: mail@
xlsoftech.com) for assistance, if any, in this regard.
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8. The route map for the AGM Venue is provided hereunder.

ROUTE MAP FOR ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING VENUE
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
To,
The Members,
Kanakadurga Finance Limited,

Your Directors have immense pleasure to present 26th Annual Report on the business, operations and state of affairs of the 
Company together with the audited financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2020:

1. Financial Highlights: 

Particulars 2019-20
(Rs. in Lakhs)

2018-19
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Gross Revenue 12747.30 9888.87
Profit Before Depreciation and Tax 1054.22 879.72
Less: depreciation and amortisation 130.48 87.02
Profit Before Tax 923.74 792.70
Less: Provision for Taxation -- --
Profit After Tax 723.04 562.84

2 Review of Operations:
 The Company has further increased its presence in promising segments including commercial vehicles loans and two 

and three wheeler loans by utilising its extensive branch network to reach out to retail customers. Currently operating 
with 124 branches and spread in 5 States and 1 union territory across the country.

 Overview of FY 2020

• Loan Book (Managed Portfolio) grew by 1.54 % to Rs. 485.48 crore as of March 31, 2020 as against Rs. 478.13 
Crore in the previous year;

• Commercial Vehicle contributed to 58.44% of loan book, Two Wheeler about 13.21%, Three Wheeler at 
20.50%, followed by Gold Loan of 7.88%, 

• Gross and Net NPAs (Non performing assets) were 2.91% and 2.59% respectively;

• Provision coverage (including for standard assets) was 21% as at FY20 end.

• Capital Adequacy Ratio was 22.03% well above the regulatory requirement of 15.0%;

• Company’s income significantly increased by 31.58 % comprising of Rs. 127 crore and profit after tax stood at 
Rs. 7.23 crore during the year.

 Further there is no change in the nature of business of the Company.

 Impact of COVID 19:
 In terms of the COVID-19 regulatory package of the RBI issued from time to time, the company has availed 3 months 

of moratorium for the term loans availed by the company from the financial institutions and Banks. The company has 
also granted moratorium to its requested borrowers. COVID 19 impacted the business operations of the Company 
and some time is required for the economic activity normalization. The extent to which the COVID 19 pandemic will 
impact the business and financial results is at this juncture dependent on future developments which are highly 
uncertain. 

3. Fund Raising:
 During the financial year ended March 31, 2020, Company raised funds from following sources:

(a) By issuance of Debentures on Private Placement 
 During the year under review, the Company had raised Rs. 32 Cr. by way of Secured Debentures and the same 

has been disclosed in Notes to Accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2020.
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(b) Borrowings from Banks
 Borrowings from the banks were Rs. 43 crore. 

(c) Borrowings from Financial Institutions
 During the period under review the Company had availed Rs. 74 crore from various financial institutions.

 The Company has been regular in making payments of principal and interest amounts to its lenders. In consideration 
to its finance cost the Company is constantly looking to avail financial facilities at reduced interest rates. 

4. Securitization of Loan portfolio:
 During the year, your Company as an originator has undertaken securitization transaction of total book value of loan 

assets amounting to Rs. 113 Cr.

5. Share Capital:
 During the year under review there is no change in Authorised Share Capital of the Company and existing Authorised 

Capital as on 31.03.2020 is Rs. 16,00,00,000/-, further the Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of your 
Company stood at Rs. 15,21,71,630/- comprising 1,52,17,163 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each on 31.03.2020.

 M/s. Banyan Tree Growth Capital II, LLC has 43,87,667 equity shares of Company comprising of 28.83% in total share 
capital.

6. RBI Registration:
 Your Company is registered with Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and the Registration Number is B-09.00204. As per the 

RBI Circular No: DNBR (PD) CC.No.097/03.10.001/2018-19 dated: 22nd February, 2019 your Company is classified as 
NBFC - Investment and Credit Company (NBFC-ICC) 

7. Directors and Key Managerial Person:
 In terms of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Jayaprakash 

Narayana Chowdary Sandireddy, Director of the Company is liable to retire by rotation at the 26th Annual General 
Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

 During the year under review designations of Directors has been changed as follows with effect from 22nd July, 2020;

 Mr. Sandireddy Lakshmi Narayana from Managing Director to Whole-time Director;

 Mr. Sandireddy Jayaprakash Narayana Chowdary from Whole-time Director to Managing Director;

 Mr. Sandireddy Srimannarayana from Whole-time Director to Managing Director

8. Statement of declaration by Independent Directors
 In terms of provisions of sub-section (7) of section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Independent Directors have 

made their disclosures stating and confirming that they are not disqualified to act as Independent Director on the 
Board of the Company and further the Board is also opinion that the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions 
specified in the Companies Act, 2013 making them act as such.

9.  Details of Board meetings:
 During the Financial Year, 4 (four) number of Board Meetings were held, details of which are given below:

Sr.No. Date of Meeting Number of Directors Attended the Board Meeting

1 26.07.2019 7

2 19.11.2019 6

3 10.02.2020 6

4 28.03.2020 6
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10. Committees of Board:
 The details of composition of the Committees of the Board of Directors are as under:-

a. Audit Committee
 In terms of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board had constituted the Audit Committee and the 

Committee comprises following Directors as its members:

Sr.No. Name Designation Status on Board

1 Mr. Sandireddy Jayaprakash Narayana Chowdary Chairman Managing Director

2 Mr. Unnam Venkateswarlu Member Independent Director

3 Mr. Amarendra Sahoo Member Independent Director

 During the financial year 2019-20, the Audit Committee met 4 (Four) times i.e. on 26th July, 2019, 19th November, 
2019, 10th February, 2020 and 28th March, 2020 

 During the year, there were no such instances where the Board did not accept the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee.

 The terms of reference of the Audit Committee inter alia includes:
1. To oversee the Company’s Financial Reporting Process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure 

that the Financial Statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

2. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of Auditors of the Company;

3. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report thereon before 
submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to;

a. Matters required being included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s 
Report.

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.

c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by the management.

d. Significant adjustments made in the Financial Statements arising out of audit findings.

e. Disclosure of any Related Party Transactions.

f. Qualifications in the draft Audit Report, if any;

4. Reviewing with the Management, the quarterly/half yearly Financial Statements, if any, before submission to 
the Board for approval;

5. Reviewing with the Management, the Statement of Uses/Application of Funds raised through an issue (public 
issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated 
in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring 
the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board 
to take up steps in this matter;

6. Review and Monitor the Auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of Audit Process;

7. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with Related Parties;

8. Scrutiny of Inter-Corporate Loans and Investments;

9. Evaluation of Internal Financial Controls and Risk Management Systems;
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10. Reviewing with the Management, the performance of Internal Auditors, adequacy of the Internal Control 
Systems and reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal 
audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage 
and frequency of internal audit;

11. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is 
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the 
matter to the Board;

12. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism;

13. Approval of appointment of CFO or any other person heading the finance function or discharging that function 
after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate;

14. Reviewing Financial Statements, in particular the investments made by the Company’s subsidiaries.

b. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee presently comprises the following Directors as its member:

Sr.No. Name Designation Status on Board

1 Mr. Unnam Venkateswarlu Chairman Independent Director

2 Mr. Amarendra Sahoo Member Independent Director

3 Mr. Abhishek Poddar Member Nominee Director

 During the financial year 2019-20, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 2 (two) times i.e. on 26th July, 
2019 and 28th Mar, 2020.

c. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Sr. No. Name Designation Status on Board

1 Mr. Sandireddy Srimannarayana Chairman Managing Director

2 Mr. S Jayaprakash Narayana Chowdary Member Managing Director

3 Mr. Unnam Venkateswarlu Member Independent Director

 During the year Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was met on 28th March 2020. The Report on CSR Activities/ 
Initiatives is enclosed as Annexure III.

11. Directors’ Responsibility Statement:
 The Board acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring compliance with the provisions of Section 134(3) (c) read 

with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended on 31st 
March, 2019 and state that:

i. In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards had been followed along with 
proper explanation relating to material departures;

ii. The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company at the end of the Financial Year and of the profit of the Company for that period;

iii. The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
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accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv. The Directors had prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis;

v. The Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

vi. The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

vii. The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

12. Extract of Annual Return: 
 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the extract of the Annual Return in Form 

MGT-9 is attached as Annexure I. The same is available at the website of the Company as part of Annul Return. The 
Annual return will be uploaded on the website of the Company once it is filed with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

13. Remuneration to Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
 In pursuant to Rule 5(1) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the 

remuneration details of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company is provided in MGT-9 annexed 
to this report as Annexure I.

14. Regulatory Compliance:
 The Company has complied with all the applicable guidelines prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India for NBFCs 

regarding Accounting Standards, Prudential Norms including Income Recognition, Capital Adequacy, Fair Practice 
Code, KYC, AML requirements, etc. 

15. Related Party Transactions:
 The transactions entered into by the Company with the Related Parties were in the ordinary course of business and 

on an arm’s length basis. Form AOC-2, as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 
8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014, is attached as part of this report vide Annexure II.

16. Material changes and commitment if any affecting the financial position of the company: 
 No material changes and commitments have been occurred between the end of the Financial Year to which this 

Financial Statements relate and on the date of this report.

17. Risk Management:
 The Management of the Company monitors and reports principal risks and uncertainties that can impact its ability to 

achieve its strategic objectives. Organisational structures, Processes, Standards of the Company altogether form the 
Risk Management System of the Company. 

 Your Company’s Management confirms that no significant and material orders have been passed by the Regulators 
or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s operation in future in accordance with the 
Rule 8(5) (vii) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

 Whereas your Company is engaged in vehicle finance and loans against security of Gold and Jewellery Ornaments, 
would lead to expose various risks viz. credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and operational risk. Whereas your 
Board of Directors are continuously review and monitor these risks at periodic intervals. The Company manages 
credit risk through stringent credit norms established through several years of experience in this line of business and 
continues to follow the time tested practice of personally assessing every borrower, before committing to a credit 
exposure. This process ensures that the expertise in lending operations acquired by the Company over decades is put 
to best use and acts to mitigate credit risks. Liquidity risk and interest rate risk arising out of maturity mismatch of 
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assets and liabilities are managed through regular monitoring of the maturity profiles. The Company monitors ALM 
periodically to mitigate the liquidity risk.

 Operational risks arising from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from external events are 
adequately addressed by the internal control systems and are continuously reviewed and monitored by a dedicated 
team of people. Process improvements and quality control are on-going activities and are built into the employee’s 
training modules, as well.

18. Dividend:
 In view to conserve resources of the Company, your directors do not recommend any dividend during the Financial 

Year. 

19. Cost Audit:
 Your Company is being engaged in the business of financial services and the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

20. Secretarial Audit:
 For the Financial Year 2019-20, your Company is not falling under the limits as prescribed in terms of Section 204 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 hence auditing of its secretarial records is not applicable to the Company for the current 
year.

 Further, as per the MCA notification dated 03rd January, 2020 pursuant to the Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and as per the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 w.e.f. financial 
years commencing on or after 01st April, 2020, every listed company and a public company having paid-up capital of 
Rs. 50 crore or more or turnover of Rs. 250 crore or more and every company having outstanding loans or borrowings 
from banks or public financial institutions of Rs. 100 crore or more shall annex to the Board Report a Secretarial Audit 
Report submitted by a Company Secretary in Practice (PCS) in the form prescribed by the Act.

 As per the latest amendment for conducting Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2020-21, Board has appointed 
M/s. RPR & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries as Secretarial Auditor of the Company.

21. Human Resources Management:
 The Human Resource (HR) department at Kanakadurga Finance Limited is driven by an endeavour:

• To origin right culture and capabilities 
• To make passionate and innovative culture for its employees
• To work beyond letter and towards sprit

 HR Management at KFL has under taken several initiatives to ensure that the knowledge and wisdom gained over 
decades is handed down to the next generation of employees. These initiatives had resulted in the form of a strong 
group of in-house facilitators of domain knowledge and a highly motivated team of employees geared to fulfilling the 
needs of your Company’s valued customers.

 At present KFL strengthen with 1000 employees working in various geographical of India.

22. Disclosure under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:
 The Company is strictly abide by its principles to protect its integrity and committed to provide a safe and healthy 

environment for all its employees. The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at work place. The 
Company had put in place a mechanism for redressal of complaints regarding sexual harassment which would be 
monitored under Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) constituted under the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

 The policy framed under above act would cover all employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) of the 
Company.
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 During the period under review no complaints were received regarding sexual harassment.

23. Statutory Auditors:
 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, the Members 

at their 23rd Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) held on 29th August, 2017 had appointed M/s. MSKA & Associates, 
Chartered Accountants, (Registration No. 105047W) as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of five years, i.e. 
from the conclusion of the 23rd AGM till the conclusion of the 28th AGM.

 In this regard, the Company has received a certificate from the Statutory Auditors to the effect that ratification of their 
appointment, if made, would be in accordance with the provisions of section 141 of the Act. 

 Further, the report of the Statutory Auditors along with notes to Schedules is enclosed to this report. The Notes to 
the financial statements referred in the Auditors Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any further 
comments under section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.

24. Internal Financial Controls: 
 The Company has in place adequate internal controls with reference financial statements and operational and same 

operating effectively. The Statutory Auditors verified the systems and processes and confirmed that the Internal 
Financial Controls systems over financial reporting are adequate and such controls are operating effectively.

 In terms of section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required to appoint internal auditor of the 
Company and the Board is on careful consideration to comply the same. 

25 Vigil Mechanism:
 Your Company has established a Vigil Mechanism for its Director, employees and stakeholders to report their genuine 

concerns and grievances. The said mechanism provides for adequate safeguard against victimisation of persons who 
uses such mechanism. The Vigil Mechanism of the Company is overseen by the Audit Committee.

 During the period under review no such complaint were reported under Vigil Mechanism. 

26. Financial statements of subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures:
 Your Company does not have any Associate, Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures companies.

27. Transfer of Amounts to Investor Education and Protection Fund:
 Your Company did not have any funds lying unpaid or unclaimed for past period of seven years. Therefore no funds 

were transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) during the period under review.

28. Deposits:
 During the period under review, your Company did not accept or renew any deposit within the meaning of Section 73 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and read with the rules framed under the Act. Further the Company does not intent to 
raise any public deposits in terms of its declaration to the Reserve Bank of India.

29. Particulars of Employees Remuneration:
 None of the employees of the Company in the financial year 2019-2020 are drawing remuneration exceeding Rs. 

8.50 Lakhs per month or Rs. 102.00 Lakhs per annum or a proportionate amount for a part period thereof (in excess 
of the threshold mentioned under Section 197(12) of the Act read with rule 5(2) of Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration) Rules, 2014.)

30.  Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo:

(i) Conservation of energy

 The Company is involved in business of providing loans to its retails customers and as such its operations do 
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not count for substantial energy consumption. However, the Company adopted effective measures to conserve 
energy.

(ii) Technology absorption

 In modern world your Company recognised the importance of technology and adopting the best practices 
which would help the Company to stay ahead in the market.

 Your Company had introduced mobile app for its vehicle finance business which would help in providing its 
services at customer’s door steps.

(iii) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo

 During the period under review the details of foreign exchange earnings and outgo of the Company is as 
follows:

 Foreign Earnings : Nil

  Foreign Outgo : Nil

31. General:
 Your Directors state that during the financial year: 2019-20

(a) The Company has not issued any equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise. 

(b) The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the year.

(c) There are no significant and material orders passed against the Company by the Regulators or Courts or 
tribunals, which would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

32. Appreciation:
 The Board of Directors wish to place on record its appreciation for the continued support and co-operation from 

the Reserve Bank of India and other Government Authorities of India, Banks, Financial Institutions, Shareholders 
and various Stakeholders viz. Debenture holders, Trustees, Intermediaries, Business Associates for their continued 
support. 

 Your Directors take this opportunity to express their sincere appreciation for the dedicated efforts of each employee 
of the Company, resulting in significant milestones achieved during the year and also confident that the Company 
would expand to new horizons in coming years.

 On Behalf of the Board of Directors
 For Kanakadurga Finance Limited

 Sd/- Sd/-
 S.J.P.N. Chowdary S. Srimannarayana
 Managing Director Managing Director
 (DIN: 00538246) (DIN: 00538273)

Date: 20th August, 2020
Place: Vijayawada
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Annexure -1

Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2020
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
1 CIN U65921AP1994PLC018605
2 Registration Date 24.10.1994
3 Name of the Company Kanakadurga Finance Limited

4 Category/Sub-Category of the Company Company Limited by Shares / Indian Non-Government 
Company

5 Address of the Registered Office and contact details
54-9-23, 100 Feet Road, Auto Nagar,
Vijayawada, Krishna, AP 520007
Ph No: 0866 6789901

6 Whether Listed company No (Debt Securities Listed)

7 Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and 
Transfer Agent ,If any

XL Softech Systems Limited
3, Sagar Society, Road No.2, Banjara Hills,
Hyderabad - 500 034.

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
 All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated:-

Sr.
No.

Name and Description of main products/ 
services

NIC Code of the 
Product/ service

% to total turnover of the 
Company

1 NBFC - Asset Finance – Hypothecation 64920 100%

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sr.No. Name And Address Of The 
Company CIN/GLN Holding / Subsidiary

/ Associate
%of shares 

held
Applicable

Section
NIL

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
 i. Category-wise Share Holding

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % 
Change 
during 

the year
Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

PROMOTERS
Indian
Individual/ HUF 7202539 - 7202539 47.34% 7202539 7202539 47.34% -
Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - -
Bodies Corp 3626957 - 3626957 23.83% 3626957 - 3626957 23.83% -
Banks / FI - - - - - - - -
Any Other - - - - - - - -
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Sub-total(A)(1):- -
Foreign
NRIs-Individuals - - - - - - - -
Other-Individuals - - - - - - - -
Body Corporate - - - - - - - -
Banks / FI’s - - - - - - - -
Any Other…. - - - - - - - -
Sub-total(A)(2):- - - - - - - - -
Total Promoter 
shareholding A 10829496 10829496 71.17 10829496 - 10829496 71.17 -

PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING
Institutions
Mutual Funds - - - - - - - -
Banks / FI - - - - - - - -
Central Govt - - - - - - - -
State Govt(s) - - - - - - - -
Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - -
Insurance Companies - - - - - - - -
FIIs - - - - - - - -
Foreign Venture Capital 
Funds - - - - - - - -

Others (specify) - - - - - - - -
Sub-total(B)(1) - - - - - - - -
2. Non Institutions
Bodies Corp.
(i) Indian - - - - - - - -

(ii) Overseas 4387667 4387667 28.83 4387667 - 4387667 28.83 -
Individuals
(i) Individual shareholders 
holding nominal share 
capital - up to Rs. 1 lakh
(ii) - excess of Rs 1 lakh

- - - - - - - -

C) OTHERS - - - - - - - -
Sub-total(B)(2) - - - - - - - -
Total Public Shareholding 
(B)= (B)(1)+ (B)(2) 4387667 4387667 28.83 4387667 - 4387667 28.83 -

C. Shares held by Custodian 
for GDRs &ADRs - - - - - - - -

GRAND TOTAL (A+B+C) 15217163 15217163 100 15217163 - 15217163 100

 II. Shareholding of Promoters

Sr. 
No. Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of 

the year Shareholding at the end of the year
% 

change 
in share 
holding 
during 

the year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

company

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumber- 
red to total 

shares

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

company

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumber- 
red to total 

shares
1 S. Lakshmi Narayana 992818 6.52 Nil 992818 6.52 Nil 0.00

2 S. Ratna Kumari 688495 4.52 Nil 688495 4.52 Nil 0.00
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3 S. J.P.N. Chowdary 2758113 18.13 Nil 2758113 18.13 Nil 0.00

4 S. Srimannarayana 2758113 18.13 Nil 2758113 18.13 Nil 0.00

5 S. Gayatri 2500 0.02 Nil 2500 0.02 Nil 0.00

6 S. Asha Jyothi 2500 0.02 Nil 2500 0.02 Nil 0.00

7 Kanakadurga Financial Services 
Ltd 2230867 14.66 Nil 2230867 14.66 Nil 0.00

8 Kanakadurga Business 
Services (Represented by 
Mr. S Jayaprakash Narayana 
Chowdary and Mr. S 
Srimannarayana)

1396090 9.17 Nil 1396090 9.17 Nil 0.00

Total 10829496 71.17 10829496 71.17

III. Change in Promoters Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) – No Change 

iv. Shareholding Pattern of Top Ten Shareholders 
 (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Sr.
No. Name Shareholding at the beginning 

of the year
Cumulative Shareholding 

during the year

1 M/s. BanyanTree Growth Capital II, LLC
No. of shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company
No. of shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

At the beginning of the year 43,87,667 28.83% - -

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters 
Share holding during the year specifying 
the reasons for increase/ decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity 
etc):

No Change

At the End of the year 43,87,667 28.83% 43,87,667 28.83%

 v. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr. 
No. Name Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year
Cumulative Shareholding 

during the year
1 Mr. S. Lakshmi Narayana No. of 

shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company
No. of shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company
At the beginning of the year 9,92,818 6.52 - -
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters 
Share holding during the year specifying the 
reasons for increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment 
/ transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):

No Change

At the End of the year 9,92,818 6.52 9,92,818 6.52
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2 Mrs. S. Ratna Kumari No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company
No. of shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company
At the beginning of the year 6,88,495 4.52 - -
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters 
Share holding during the year specifying 
the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity 
etc):

No Change

At the End of the year 6,88,495 4.52 6,88,495 4.52
3 Mr. S. Jayaprakash Narayana Chowdary No. of 

shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company
No. of shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company
At the beginning of the year 27,58,113 18.13% - -
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters 
Share holding during the year specifying the 
reasons for increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment 
/ transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):

No Change

At the End of the year 27,58,113 18.13% 27,58,113 18.13%
4 Mr. S. Srimannarayana No. of 

shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company
No. of shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company
At the beginning of the year 27,58,113 18.13% - -
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters 
Share holding during the year specifying the 
reasons for increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment 
/ transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):

No Change

At the End of the year 27,58,113 18.13% 27,58,113 18.13%

V. INDEBTEDNESS
 Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Particulars

Secured Loans 
excluding 
deposits

(Rs. in Crores)

Unsecured
Loans
(Rs. in 
Crores)

Deposits
(Rs. in 
Crores)

Total
Indebtedness
(Rs. in Crores)

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not

365.34
-

0.77

43.15
-

0.58

-
-
-

408.49
-

1.35

Total(i+ii+iii) 366.11 43.73 - 409.84

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
- Addition
- Reduction

149.00
181.43

-
12.94

-
-

149.00
194.37

Net Change -32.43 -12.94 - -45.37

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due

333.68
- 

1.89

30.79
-

0.15

-
-
-

364.47
-

2.04

Total (i+ii+iii) 335.57 30.94 Nil 366.51
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEYMANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
 A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager

S. 
No.

Particulars of
Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total

Amount
1.

Name

Mr. S. 
Lakshmi

Narayana 
(WTD)

Mrs. S. 
Ratna

Kumari 
(WTD)

Mr. S.J.P.N.
Chowdary 

(MD)

Mr. S. 
Sriman

Narayana 
(MD & CFO)

2. Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per provisions 

contained in section17(1) of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under 
section17(3) Income- tax 
Act,1961

50,00,000 50,00,000 50,00,000 50,00,000 2,00,00,000

3. Stock Option Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

4. Sweat Equity Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
5. Commission

- as % of profit
- others, specify…

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

6. Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

7. Total(A) 50,00,000 50,00,000 50,00,000 50,00,000 2,00,00,000

 B. Remuneration to other Directors:

S.
No. Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Director
Total

AmountUnnam 
Venkateswarlu

Amarendra 
Sahoo

1. Independent Directors
·Fee for attending board committee meetings
·Commission
·Others, please specify

35,000 1,40,000 1,75,000

2. Total (1) 35,000 1,40,000 1,75,000

Total (A) 35,000 1,40,000 1,75,000

3. Other Non-Executive Directors
·Fee for attending board committee meetings
·Commission
·Others, please specify

Nil Nil Nil

4. Total (2) Nil Nil Nil

5. Total (B)=(1+2) Nil Nil Nil

6. Total Remuneration A+B 35,000 1,40,000 1,75,000
7. Overall Ceiling as per the Act
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 C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD/Manager/WTD

S.
No.

Particulars of
Remuneration CEO

CS CFO

Mrs. Lakshmi 
Sowjanya Alla*

Mr. S. 
Srimannarayana**

1.
2.

Gross salary
(a)Salary as per provisions contained in section17(1)
of the Income-tax Act,1961
(b)Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)Income-tax
Act,1961
(c)Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 
Income-tax Act,1961

Nil 8,87,103 50,00,000

3. Stock Option Nil Nil Nil
4. Sweat Equity Nil Nil Nil
5. Commission

- as % of profit
-others, specify…

Nil
Nil Nil

6. Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil
7. Total Nil 8,87,103 50,00,000

 *Mrs. Lakshmi Sowjanya Alla has been appointed as Company Secretary w.e.f. 5th July, 2019, the remuneration has 
been paid accordingly 

 **Mr. Srimannarayana being WTD and CFO of the Company drew remuneration in the capacity of WTD and as well as 
CFO details were provided in Director’s remuneration for the above. 

VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type
Section of the 

Companies 
Act

Brief 
Description

Details of Penalty/
Punishment/

Compounding fees 
imposed

Authority
[RD/NCLT/

Court]

Appeal 
made. If 
any (give 
details)

A. Company
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -
B. Directors
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -
C. Other Officers In Default
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -

 On Behalf of the Board of Directors
 For Kanakadurga Finance Limited

 Sd/- Sd/-
 S.J.P.N. Chowdary S. Srimannarayana
 Managing Director Managing Director
 (DIN: 00538246) (DIN: 00538273)

Date: 20th August, 2020
Place: Vijayawada
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Annexure II

Form No. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) 

of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to 
in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under third proviso 
thereto

(a) Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not 
at arm’s length basis: 

NIL

(b) Details of material contracts or arrangement or 
transactions at arm’s length basis

Lease Agreement entered with Mr. Sandireddy 
Lakshmi Narayana and Mrs. Ratna Kumari

 On Behalf of the Board of Directors
 For Kanakadurga Finance Limited

 Sd/- Sd/-
 S.J.P.N. Chowdary S. Srimannarayana
 Managing Director Managing Director
 (DIN: 00538246) (DIN: 00538273)

Date: 20th August, 2020
Place: Vijayawada
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Annexure III

REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES / INITIATIVES
[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Act & Rules made there under]

1. A brief outline of the company’s CSR policy, including overview of the projects or programs proposed to be 
undertaken has been laid down.

 KFL aims to undertake CSR activities that creates sustainable growth and empowers under privileged sections of 
society. KFL focuses on following CSR activities:
a. Education
b. Health
c. Sustainable livelihood

2. Composition of the CSR Committee

S. 
No. Name of the Member Chairman/ 

Members Status on Board

1 Mr. Sandireddy Jayaprakash Narayana Chowdary Chairman Whole-time Director
2 Mr. Sandireddy Srimannarayana Member Whole-time Director
3 Mr. Unnam Venkateswarlu Member Independent Director

3. CSR Amount
i. Average Net Profit of the Company for last 3 financial years: Rs. 73,59,861 /- 
ii. Prescribed CSR expenditure (2% of amount): Rs.14,71,972/-
iii. Amount spent: 10,63,280 /-
iv. Amount unspent: 4,08,692 /-

 The details of CSR activities are provided below.

4.  Reasons for short fall spending of CSR Amount
 During the financial year 2019-20, the Company spent certain CSR amount on prescribed CSR activities. The amount 

deployed has been based on the finalization of programs/projects which are duly identified through evaluation. 

 KFL has focused its efforts on identifying and undertaking CSR projects that have maximum potential to improve 
sustainability. In alignment with this vision, in FY 2019-20, the Company undertook various projects in the core 
areas of health care and education. KFL envisages enhancing the scope of its CSR activities, whereas under some 
circumstances the Company is not able to spend on CSR projects and Company is looking for long terms Projects and 
in coming years the allocated CSR will be spent on the same. 

5.  Responsibility Statement
 A responsibility statement by the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in 

compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company

We hereby state that implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the 
company.

For Kanakadurga Finance Limited

Sd/-
S Jayaprakash Narayana Chowdary 

Chairman of CSR Committee

Date: 20th August, 2020
Place: Vijayawada
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S. 
No

CSR 
Project or 

activity 
identified

Sector in which 
the project is 

covered

Projects or 
Programs

Amount 
Outlay 

(budget) on 
Project or 
Programs 

(INR)

Amount 
spent on the 
projects or 

programs (Rs)
Cumulative 
expenditure 

up to the 
reporting 

period (Rs)

Amount Spent: 
Direct or through 

implementing agency1. Local area or 
other

1. Direct 
Expenditure

2. Specified Location 2. Overhead

1 Donation 
for food

Eradicating 
hunger, 
poverty and 
malnutrition

Vijayawada - Andhra 
Pradesh

1,50,000/- 1,25,000/- 1,25,000/- Amount spent through 
- Sandireddy Lakshmi 
Narayana Ratna Kumari 
Foundation

2 Promotion 
of 
Education

Promoting 
education 
by providing 
financial 
assistance to 
deserving and 
meritorious 
students

Krishna District, 
Andhra Pradesh

7,50,000/- 6,14,400/- 6,14,400/- Amount spent through 
– Sandireddy Lakshmi 
Narayana Ratna Kumari 
Foundation

3 Promotion 
of 
Education

Promoting 
education 
by providing 
financial 
assistance to 
deserving and 
meritorious 
students

Guntur District, 
Andhra Pradesh

50,000/- 30,000/- 30,000/- Amount spent through 
– Sandireddy Lakshmi 
Narayana Ratna Kumari 
Foundation

4 Promotion 
of 
Sanitation

Promoting 
Sanitation 
by providing 
dustbin , 
Broomsticks 
distributions

Krishna District, 
Andhra Pradesh

1,00,000/- 74,200/- 74,200/- Amount spent through 
– Sandireddy Lakshmi 
Narayana Ratna Kumari 
Foundation

5 Providing 
drinking 
water

To make 
available safe 
drinking water

Vijayawada - Andhra 
Pradesh

1,00,000/- 52,480/- 52,480/- Amount spent through 
– Sandireddy Lakshmi 
Narayana Ratna Kumari 
Foundation

6 Protection 
animal 
welfare

Protect the 
Animal welfare 
Associations 

Vijayawada – Andhra 
Pradesh

50,000/- 25,000/- 25,000/- Amount spent through 
– Sandireddy Lakshmi 
Narayana Ratna Kumari 
Foundation

7 Promote 
rural 
sports

Training to 
promote rural 
sports

Vijayawada – Andhra 
Pradesh

50,000/- 3,600/- 3,600/- Amount spent through 
– Sandireddy Lakshmi 
Narayana Ratna Kumari 
Foundation
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8 Provide 
health 
care 
including 
preventive 
health 
care

Promotion 
of Health & 
Hygiene

Vijayawada - Andhra 
Pradesh.

2,50,000/- 1,68,600/- 1,68,600/- Amount spent through 
- Sandireddy Lakshmi 
Narayana Ratna Kumari 
Foundation

For Kanakadurga Finance Limited

Sd/-
S Jayaprakash Narayana Chowdary 

Chairman of CSR Committee

Date: 20th August, 2020
Place: Vijayawada



30 Annual Report 2019-20

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of 

Kanakadurga Finance Limited 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Kanakadurga Finance Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance 
Sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the Statement of Profit and Loss and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and 
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true 
and fair view in conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 as amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31, 2020, and profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our 
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to the financial statements:

a) We draw attention to Note 30 to the financial statements which explains the uncertainty and the management’s 
assessment of the impact, due to the lock-downs and other restrictions/Conditions related to Covid-19 pandemic 
situation, on Company’s Operations, financial performance and position as at and for the year ended March 31, 2020, 
including allowance on loans and advances in context of moratorium granted to the company’s borrowers vide RBI 
Circular dated April 17, 2020.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information obtained at the date of 
this auditor’s report is information included in the Director’s report etc but does not include the financial statements and 
our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those charged with Governance for Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the 
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting 
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate of accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant 
to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as 
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements.

We give in “Annexure A” a detailed description of Auditor’s responsibilities for Audit of the Financial Statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of 

India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt  with by this Report 
are in agreement with the books of account.

d.  In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e.  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 taken on record 
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as 
a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure C”.

g.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us:
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i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial 
statements - Refer Note 27 to the financial statements;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were 
any material foreseeable losses.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company.

3.  As required by The Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, in our opinion, according to information, explanations given 
to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors is within the limits laid prescribed under Section 197 of 
the Act and the rules thereunder.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Sd/-
Ananthakrishnan Govindan 
Partner
Membership No. 205226
UDIN: 20205226AAAAGQ1544

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 20, 2020



33 Annual Report 2019-20

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KANAKADURGA FINANCE LIMITED

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 
or the override of internal control.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the company has internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.

•  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 
as a going concern.

•  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Sd/-
Ananthakrishnan Govindan 
Partner
Membership No. 205226
UDIN: 20205226AAAAGQ1544

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 20, 2020
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ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF KANAKADURGA FINANCE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 
2020
[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent Auditors’ 
Report]

i. (a)  The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and 
situation of fixed assets (Property, Plant and Equipment).

 (b)  The fixed assets (Property, Plant and Equipment) have not been physically verified by the management during 
the year but there is a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard 
to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification.

 (c)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

ii.  The Company is involved in the business of rendering services. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(ii) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

iii.  The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, Firms, Limited Liability Partnerships 
(LLP) or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). 
Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (iii) (a) to (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not either directly 
or indirectly, granted any loan to any of its directors or to any other person in whom the director is interested, in 
accordance with the provisions of section 185 of the Act and the Company has not made investments through more 
than two layers of investment companies in accordance with the provisions of section 186 of the Act. Accordingly, 
provisions stated in paragraph 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

v.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any 
deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the rules framed there 
under.

vi.  The provisions of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the Company as the Central Government 
of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records for any of the products of the Company. Accordingly, the 
provisions stated in paragraph 3 (vi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

vii. (a)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, 
in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues 
including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs, cess 
and any other statutory dues applicable to it.

 (b)  According to the information and explanation given to us and examination of records of the Company, the 
outstanding dues of income-tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, cess and any other statutory dues on 
account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the
statute

Nature of
dues

Amount
Rs.

Period to which
the amount

relates

Forum where
dispute is
pending

Remarks, if 
any

Income tax act, 
1961

I n c o m e 
tax

1,077,561 A.Y.2017-18 Commissioner of Income 
tax (Appeals)

None

viii.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in 
repayment of dues to the financial institution, bank or debenture holders.

ix.  In our opinion, according to the information explanation provided to us, money raised by way of term loans during 
the year have been applied for the purpose for which they were raised. The Company has not raised any money by 
way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year.
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x.  During the course of our audit, examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance 
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or 
employees.

xi.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals 
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

xii.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. 
Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph  3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiii.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, 
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and 
details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting 
standards.

xiv.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly 
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (xiv) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company.

xv.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. 
Accordingly, provisions stated in paragraph 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvi.  The Company is required to and has been registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as 
Non-Banking Financial Company.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Sd/-
Ananthakrishnan Govindan 
Partner
Membership No. 205226
UDIN: 20205226AAAAGQ1544

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 20, 2020
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ANNEXURE  C  TO  THE  INDEPENDENT  AUDITOR’S  REPORT  OF  EVEN  DATE  ON  THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KANAKADURGA FINANCE LIMITED
[Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent Auditors’ 
Report of even date to the Members of Kanakadurga Finance Limited on the Financial Statements for the year ended 
March 31, 2020]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Kanakadurga Finance Limited (“the 
Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 
on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) (the “Guidance Note”). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by 
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With reference to Financial Statements
A Company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

A Company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that 
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of 
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With reference to financial statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including  the  
possibility  of  collusion  or  improper  management  override  of  controls,  material misstatements due to error or fraud may 
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements 
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 
may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, 
based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Sd/-
Ananthakrishnan Govindan 
Partner
Membership No. 205226
UDIN: 20205226AAAAGQ1544

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 20, 2020



38 Annual Report 2019-20

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2020
(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars  Note 31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds
Share Capital 3  152,171,630  152,171,630 
Reserves and surplus 4  803,133,963  730,829,854 

 955,305,593  883,001,484 
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 5  1,381,053,929  2,283,777,857 
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 11  -  232,468 
Long term provisions 6  29,625,154  19,475,767 

 1,410,679,083  2,303,486,092 
Current liabilities
Short Term borrowings 7  455,384,333  294,364,791 
Other current liabilities 8  1,938,947,485  1,585,386,251 
Short term provisions 6  -  - 

 2,394,331,818  1,879,751,042 
Total  4,760,316,494  5,066,238,618 

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
 Tangible assets 9  80,610,435  79,947,427
 Intangible assets 10  1,887,051 2,695,501
Deferred tax assets (Net) 11  6,030,829  - 
Long term Loans and advances 12  2,317,199,266  2,263,511,373 
Other non-current assets 13  750,000  750,000 

 2,406,477,580  2,346,904,301 
Current assets
Cash and bank balances 14  327,238,080  631,614,627 
Short term Loans and advances 15  1,859,612,256  1,981,876,684 
Other current assets 16  166,988,577  105,843,006 

 2,353,838,913  2,719,334,317 
Total  4,760,316,494  5,066,238,618 

Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

For MSKA & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants KANAKADURGA FINANCE LIMITED
Firm Registration No:105047W 

Ananthakrishnan G S. Lakshmi Narayana S.J.P. Narayana
Partner Director Managing Director
Membership No:205226 DIN:00538185 DIN:00538246

 S. Srimannarayana A.L. Sowjanya
Place: Vijayawada Managing Director Cum CFO Company Secretary
Date: 20-08-2020 DIN:00538273 Membership No:44779
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020

(Amount in Rs.)

 Note 31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Income:

Revenue from operations 17  1,183,558,631  899,492,633 

Other Income 18  91,171,806  89,841,276 

Total Revenue  1,274,730,437  989,333,909 

Expenses:

Employee benefits expense 19  279,451,810  264,025,932 

Finance costs 20  622,778,313  439,344,842 

Corporate Social Responsibility expenditures 21  1,063,280  371,736 

Depreciation and amortization expense 22  13,047,574  8,702,788 

Other expenses 23  266,014,735  197,618,192 

Total expenses  1,182,355,712  910,063,490 

Profit before tax  92,374,725  79,270,419 

Tax expense:

Current tax

 For current year profits  25,672,427  24,087,719 

 For Previous year profits  661,485  - 

Deferred tax charge/ (benefit) 11  (6,263,297)  (1,101,458)

 20,070,615  22,986,261 

Profit/(Loss) for the year  72,304,110  56,284,158 

Earnings per equity share
[Face value per share Rs.10 (previous year Rs.10)]: 24

 Basic earnings per share  4.75  3.70 

 Diluted earnings per share  4.75  3.70 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

For MSKA & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants KANAKADURGA FINANCE LIMITED
Firm Registration No:105047W 

Ananthakrishnan G S. Lakshmi Narayana S.J.P. Narayana
Partner Director Managing Director
Membership No:205226 DIN:00538185 DIN:00538246

 S. Srimannarayana A.L. Sowjanya
Place: Vijayawada Managing Director Cum CFO Company Secretary
Date: 20-08-2020 DIN:00538273 Membership No:44779
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
(Amount in Rs)

Particulars 31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Cash Flow from Operating activities

Profit before tax 92,374,725 79,270,418 

Adjustments for:

 Depreciation and amortization expenses 13,047,574 8,702,788 

 Interest (income)  (8,421,274)  (5,466,103)

 Interest ( Expense) 595,754,328 421,354,146 

 Provision for doubtful debts 10,149,387 9,201,501 

 (Gain)/ Loss on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 1,189,449 446,348 

Operating Profit before working capital changes 704,094,189 513,509,098 

Changes in working capital

Increase / (decrease) in other current liabilities 47,606,699  (90,300,170)

Decrease / (increase) in loans and advances 4,084,685  (1,440,134,424)

Decrease / (increase) in other current assets  (1,334,793) 33,466,897 

Cash generated from /(used in) operations 754,450,781  (983,458,600)

Income tax paid (Including TDS receivable) 37,469,813 29,080,693 

Income tax refund(s) received - 734,400 

Net cash flows from /(used in) operating activities (A) 716,980,968  (1,013,273,693)

Cash flow from Investing activities

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment, including movement in CWIP and 
capital advances  (15,178,413)  (48,765,559)

Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 1,086,839 712,000 

Interest Paid  (572,524,758)  (424,099,565)

Interest received 5,396,776 38,443,039 

Net cash flow from /(used in) investing activities (B)  (581,219,556)  (433,710,085)

Cash flow from Financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of equity share capital - 305,000,000 

Proceeds from long-term borrowings  (601,157,499) 1,505,100,972 

Proceeds from short-term borrowings 161,019,542  (204,815,591)

Net cash flow from /(used in) financing activities (C)  (440,137,956) 1,605,285,381 

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  (304,376,545) 158,301,604 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 631,614,627 473,313,024 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 327,238,080 631,614,627 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise 

Balances with banks

 On current accounts 293,880,206 571,914,143 

 Deposits with original maturity of less than three months - -

Cash on hand 33,357,874 59,700,484 

Total cash and bank balances at end of the year 327,238,080 631,614,627 
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Notes :
1. The Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in Accounting Standard-3, “Cash Flow 

Statement” notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules 2014.

2. Cash comprises cash on hand, Current Accounts and deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short term balances 
(with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are 
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of change in value.

As per our report of even date

For MSKA & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants KANAKADURGA FINANCE LIMITED
Firm Registration No:105047W 

Ananthakrishnan G S. Lakshmi Narayana S.J.P. Narayana
Partner Director Managing Director
Membership No:205226 DIN:00538185 DIN:00538246

 S. Srimannarayana A.L. Sowjanya
Place: Vijayawada Managing Director Cum CFO Company Secretary
Date: 20-08-2020 DIN:00538273 Membership No:44779
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020
(Amount in Rs.)

3. Share capital
 The Company has only one class of share capital having a par value of Rs. 10 per share, referred to herein as equity 

shares.

Particulars 31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019
Authorized
1,60,00,000 (previous year 1,60,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each  160,000,000  157,500,000 
Issued, subscribed and paid up 
1,52,17,163 (previous year 1,52,17,163) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully 
paid

 152,171,630  152,171,630 

Total  152,171,630  152,171,630 
Share application money received  - 

 (a) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Particulars
31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

 Number of 
shares  Amount  Number of 

shares  Amount 

Outstanding at the beginning of the year  15,217,163  152,171,630  11,161,881  111,618,810 
Add: Issued during the year  -  -  4,055,282  40,552,820 
Outstanding at the end of the year  15,217,163  152,171,630  15,217,163  152,171,630 

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
 The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each shareholder is entitled to one 

vote per share held. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of 
Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

 In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of 
the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity 
shares held by the shareholders.

(c) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder
31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

 Number of 
shares 

 % of holding in 
the class 

 Number of 
shares 

 % of holding in 
the class 

Kanakadurga Financial Services Limited  2,230,867 14.66%  2,230,867 14.66%
S.Lakshminarayana  992,818 6.52%  992,818 6.52%
S.Ratna Kumari  688,495 4.52%  688,495 4.52%
S.Jayaprakash Narayana Chowdary  2,758,113 18.13%  2,758,113 18.13%
S.Srimannarayana  2,758,113 18.13%  2,758,113 18.13%
Banyan Tree Growth Capital II  4,387,667 28.83%  4,387,667 28.83%
Kanakadurga Business Services  1,396,090 9.17%  1,396,090 9.17%

4. Reserves and surplus (Amount in Rs.)

Particulars 31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019
(a) General Reserve

Opening balance  150,600  150,600 
Add: Current year transfer from    -  - 
Less: Utilization on account of / Transfer to  -  - 
Closing balance  150,600  150,600 
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(b) Statutory Reserve
(As per Sec.45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934)
Opening balance  89,298,487  78,041,656 
Add: Current year transfer from  14,460,822  11,256,831 
Less: Utilization on account of / Transfer to  -  - 
Closing balance  103,759,309  89,298,487 

(c) Securities Premium Account
Opening balance  331,447,262  67,000,082 
Add : Securities premium credited on share issue  264,447,180 
Closing balance  331,447,262  331,447,262 

(d) Surplus/(deficit) in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening balance  309,933,505  264,906,179 
Add: Net Profit/(Net Loss) for the current year  72,304,110  56,284,157 
Less: Transfer to Statutory reserves  (14,460,822)  (11,256,831)
Closing balance  367,776,793  309,933,505 
Total Reserves and surplus  803,133,964  730,829,854 

5. Long-term borrowings

Particulars
 Current maturities  Non current maturities 

31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019 31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Secured 

(a) Debentures *  160,000,000  70,588,235  360,000,000  300,000,000 

(b) Term loans*

from banks  491,996,085  240,615,075  246,158,140  298,638,985 

from other parties  998,575,702  1,132,997,148  622,724,797  1,312,303,034 

(c) Vehicle loans  1,380,863  1,875,045  578,019  1,958,882 

Total 1,651,952,650 1,446,075,503  1,229,460,956  1,912,900,901 

*Terms of repayment
1. 12.50% Non Convertible Debentures 200 Nos of Rs.10,00,000 issued on 29th June 18 and Redeemable Rs 

10,00,000 Each on 30th March 2023
2. 13.68% Non Convertible Debentures 3200 Nos of Rs.100,000 issued on 5th Aug 19 and Redeemable Rs 

100,000 Each on 5th Aug 2022
3. Term Loan from Sundaram Finance Limited 

is secured by exclusive charge on specific 
receivables of the company

Repayable in 36Monthly Instalments commencing 
from September 2017 and ending on September 2020. 

4. Term Loan from Sundaram Finance Limited 
is secured by exclusive charge on specific 
receivables of the company

Repayable in 36Monthly Instalments commencing 
from November 2018 and ending on November 2021. 

5. Term Loan from Sundaram Finance Limited 
is secured by exclusive charge on specific 
receivables of the company

Repayable in 36Monthly Instalments commencing 
from September 2019 and ending on September 2022. 

6. Term Loan from AU Financers is secured by 
exclusive first charge on portfolio of receivables 
of the company

Repayable in 36 Monthly Instalments commencing 
from September 2017 and ending on December 2020. 

7. Term Loan from AU Financers is secured by 
exclusive first charge on portfolio of receivables 
of the company

Repayable in 36 Monthly Instalments commencing 
from October 2018 and ending on May 2021. 
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8. Term Loan from AU Financers is secured by 
exclusive first charge on portfolio of receivables 
of the company

Repayable in 36 Monthly Instalments commencing 
from July 2019 and ending on February 2022. 

9. Term Loan from Hinduja Leyland Finance is 
secured by exclusive first charge on portfolio of 
receivables of the company

Repayable in 36 Monthly Instalments commencing 
from February 2018 and ending on January 2021. 

10. Term Loan from Hinduja Leyland Finance is 
secured by exclusive first charge on portfolio of 
receivables of the company

Repayable in 36 Monthly Instalments commencing 
from March 2018 and ending on March 2021. 

11. Term Loan from A.K.Capital Services Ltd is 
secured by exclusive first charge on portfolio of 
receivables of the company

Repayable in 31 Monthly Instalments commencing 
from November 2017 and ending on May 2020. 

12. Term Loan from Mahindra & Mahindra Financial 
Services Limited is secured by exclusive first 
charge on portfolio of receivables of the company

Repayable in 36 Monthly Instalments commencing 
from November 2017 and ending on November 2020. 

13. Term Loan from Manappuram Finance Limited is 
secured by exclusive first charge on portfolio of 
receivables of the company

Repayable in 12 Quarterly Instalments and Interest to 
be paid Every Month. 

14. Term Loan from South Indian Bank Ltd is secured 
by exclusive charge on specific receivables of the 
company

Repayable in 36 Monthly Instalments and Interest to 
be paid as and when it becomes due. 

15. Term Loan from Fincare Small Finance Bank 
is secured by exclusive charge on specific 
receivables of the company

Repayable in 36 Monthly Instalments commencing 
from March 2018 and ending on April’ 2021. 

16.  Term Loan from Fincare Small Finance Bank 
is secured by exclusive charge on specific 
receivables of the company

Repayable in 24 Monthly Instalments commencing 
Feb 2019 and ending on February 2021. 

17. Term Loan from Fincare Small Finance Bank 
is secured by exclusive charge on specific 
receivables of the company

Repayable in 24 Monthly Instalments commencing 
from Feb 2020 and ending on Feb 2022. 

18. Term Loan from ESAF Small Finance Bank 
is secured by exclusive charge on specific 
receivables of the company

Repayable in 24 Monthly Instalments commencing 
from October 2019 and ending on December 2021. 

19. Term Loan from Muthoot Capital Services 
Limited is secured by exclusive charge on specific 
receivables of the company

Repayable in 36 Monthly Instalments commencing 
from April 2018 and ending on March 2021. 

20. Term Loan from Hiranandani Financial Services 
Private Limited is secured by exclusive charge on 
specific receivables of the company

Repayable in 24 Monthly Instalments commencing 
from July 2019 and ending on July 2021. 

 21. Term Loan from Avanse Financial Service Limited 
is secured by exclusive charge on specific 
receivables of the company

Repayable in 36 Monthly Instalments commencing 
from June 2018 and ending on June 2021. 

22. Term Loan from IDFC Bank Limited is secured by 
exclusive charge on specific receivables of the 
company

Repayable in 36 Monthly Instalments commencing 
from October 2018 and ending on October 2021. 

23. Term Loan from Profectus Capital Private 
Limited is secured by exclusive charge on specific 
receivables of the company

Repayable in 24 Monthly Instalments commencing 
from August 2019 and ending on August 2021. 

24. Term Loan from IFMR is secured by exclusive 
charge on specific receivables of the company

Repayable in 28 Monthly Instalments commencing 
from May 2018 and ending on September 2020. 
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25. Term Loan from IFMR is secured by exclusive 
charge on specific receivables of the company

Repayable in 36 Monthly Instalments commencing 
from March 2020 and ending on March 2023. 

26. Term Loan from IFMR is secured by exclusive 
charge on specific receivables of the company

Repayable in 30 Monthly Instalments commencing 
from May 2019 and ending on December 2021. 

27. Term Loan from IFMR is secured by exclusive 
charge on specific receivables of the company

Repayable in 36 Monthly Instalments commencing 
from June 2019 and ending on June 2022. 

28. Term Loan from J.M Financial Product is secured 
by exclusive charge on specific receivables of the 
company

Repayable in 24 Monthly Instalments commencing 
from May 2018 and ending on June 2020. 

29. Term Loan from Manappuram Finance Limited 
is secured by exclusive charge on specific 
receivables of the company

Repayable in 36 Monthly Instalments commencing 
from Mar 2019 and ending on March 2022. 

30. Term Loan from Manappuram Finance Limited 
is secured by exclusive charge on specific 
receivables of the company

Repayable in 36 Monthly Instalments commencing 
from September 2018 and ending September on 2021. 

31. Term Loan from Money Wise Financial Service 
Limited is secured by exclusive charge on specific 
receivables of the company

Repayable in 36 Monthly Instalments commencing 
from January 2019 and ending on January 2022. 

32. Term Loan from Muthoot Capital Services 
Limited is secured by exclusive charge on specific 
receivables of the company

Repayable in 36 Monthly Instalments commencing 
from April 2019 and ending on March 2022. 

33. Term Loan from Indusind Bank Limited is secured 
by exclusive charge on specific receivables of the 
company

Repayable in 36 Monthly Instalments commencing 
from May 2019 and ending on May 2022. 

34. Term Loan from Nabkisan Finance Limited 
is secured by exclusive charge on specific 
receivables of the company

Repayable in 36 Monthly Interest & Quarterly principal 
payment commencing from November 2019 and 
ending on November 2022. 

35. Term Loan from Muthoot Finance Limited 
is secured by exclusive charge on specific 
receivables of the company

Repayable in 18 Monthly Interest & Quarterly principal 
payment commencing from March 2019 and ending 
on September 2020. 

36. Term Loan from Muthoot Finance Limited 
is secured by exclusive charge on specific 
receivables of the company

Repayable in 18 Monthly Interest & Quarterly Principal 
payment commencing from July 2019 and ending on 
December 2020. 

38. Term Loan from Vivriti Capital Private Limited 
is secured by exclusive charge on specific 
receivables of the company

Repayable in 36 Monthly Instalments commencing 
from January 2019 and ending on January 2022. 

39. Term Loan from Volkswagen Finance Private 
Limited is secured by exclusive charge on specific 
receivables of the company

Repayable in 36 Monthly Instalments commencing 
from December 2018 and ending on December 2021. 

40. Term Loan from Utkarsh Small finance Bank 
is secured by exclusive charge on specific 
receivables of the company

Repayable in Quarterly Instalments commencing from 
June 2018 
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(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars
 Current maturities  Non current maturities 

31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019 31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019
Unsecured

(a) Debentures *  156,329,382 60,640,100  151,592,973 370,876,956
Total long term borrowings including 
its current maturities

 1,808,282,032  1,506,715,603  1,381,053,929  2,283,777,857

Less: Amount disclosed under the 
hear “Other current liabilities”

 (1,808,282,032)  (1,506,715,603)  -  - 

Total non current maturities of long 
term borrowings

 -  - 1,381,053,929  2,283,777,857

*Terms of repayment
1. 13.50 % 1500 Debentures of Rs. 100000 issued on 4th Jan 18 and each redeemable at Rs 100000 on 4th Jan 

2021.
2. 13.40 % 2000 Debentures of Rs. 100000 issued on 30th Nov 18 and each redeemable at Rs 100000 on 30th 

Nov 2021.
3. 15.25 % 1000000 Debentures of Rs. 10 issued on 29th Dec 18 and each redeemable at Rs 10 on 01st Jan 

2024.

6. Provisions

Particulars
Long term  Short term

31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019 31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019
(a) Other provisions 

Provision for Income tax [net of advance 
tax] - -  - -

For Non-Performing assets
Substandard Assets  12,242,717  8,428,821 - -
Doubt full & Loss Assets  3,000,269  1,190,415 - -
For Standard Assets  14,382,168  9,856,531 - - 
Total Provisions  29,625,154  19,475,767  - - 

7. Short -term borrowings

Particulars 31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019
Secured 

(a) Loans repayable on demand
from banks  455,384,333 294,364,791
Total Short -term borrowings  455,384,333  294,364,791 

*Terms of repayment
Cash Credit loan from Banks was for the financial year 2019–20 and carries interest @ 10.30% p.a. The loan is 
repayable on Yearly basis. it is secured by hypothecation of Vehicle stock receivables and Gold loan Receivables 
along with collaterals.

8. Other current liabilities (Amount in Rs.)

Particulars 31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019
(a) Current maturities of long-term debt (Refer note 5)  1,808,282,032 1,506,715,603 
(b) Interest Accrued but not due  21,911,235  17,523,129 
(c) Salaries Payable  2,747,403  19,257,479 
(d) Statutory Dues including Tax deducted at source  7,765,926  10,713,473 
(e) Other payables  12,800,141  2,724,153
(f) Payables on account of Securitisation  85,440,748  28,452,414 

Total Other current liabilities  1,938,947,485  1,585,386,251 
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11. Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) (Net)  (Amount in Rs.)

Particulars 31/Mar/2020  Charge / (benefit) for 
the year 31/Mar/2019

Deferred tax asset

   Provision for doubtful debts  7,456,059  (2,037,900)  5,418,158 

Gross deferred tax asset (A)  7,456,059  (2,037,900)  5,418,158 

Deferred tax liability

   Difference between book depreciation & tax 
depreciation  1,425,230  (4,225,396)  5,650,626 

Gross deferred tax liability (B)  1,425,230  (4,225,396)  5,650,626 

Net deferred tax asset/(liability) (A-B)  6,030,829  (6,263,297)  (232,468)

12. Long term loans and advances

Particulars 31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

(a) Loans and Advances

Secured, considered good

Stock on Hypothecation  2,201,654,516  2,177,219,057 

Term Loans  -  4,622,209 

(a)  2,201,654,516  2,181,841,266 

(b) Security Deposits

Rent  18,899,650  19,908,650 

On Securitisation*  78,554,943  40,869,297 

Others  918,092  590,953 

(c) Other loans and advances 

Prepaid expenses  17,172,066  20,301,207 

(b)  115,544,751  81,670,107 

Total (a)+(b)  2,317,199,267  2,263,511,373 

*Under lien with Securitisation Trust

13. Other non-current assets

Particulars 31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

(Unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise)

Others

Non-current bank balances  750,000  750,000 

Total other non-current other assets  750,000  750,000 

14. Cash an Bank Balances

Particulars 31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Cash and cash equivalents

On current accounts  293,880,206  571,914,143 

Cash on hand  33,357,874  59,700,484 

Total  327,238,080  631,614,627 
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15. Short term loans and advances (Amount in Rs.)

Particulars 31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

(Secured, considered good)

(a) Security Deposits#  29,666,514  6,210,497 

(b) Loans and advances 

Stock on Hypothecation  1,373,056,509  1,720,426,379 

Loans against security of Gold Jewellery  382,634,239  197,869,273 

Term Loans  726,493  - 

(c) Other loans and advances 

Prepaid expenses  25,279,210  21,297,542 

Due from Dealers  20,775,019  27,846,091 

Other receivables  8,448,740  416,922 

GST input credit receivable  3,945,198  3,372,703 

Advance tax and tax deducted at source [Net of provision for 
income Tax Rs.2,65,58,259]  15,080,333  4,437,278 

Total  1,859,612,256  1,981,876,684 

#Under lien with Securitisation Trust

16. Other current assets

Particulars 31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

(a) Interest accrued and due on loans  54,769,355  43,226,350 

(b) Interest accrued and but not due on loans  102,845,072  54,577,300 

(c) Bad debts recovered from MLR Auto  1,750,000  3,000,000 

(d) Interest accrued on FD& Insurance Income  6,428,428  3,847,165 

(e) Income Tax refund  1,195,722  1,192,192 

Total  166,988,577  105,843,006 

17. Revenue from operations

Particulars 31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Interest income from :

Hypothecated Vehicle loans  1,117,785,838  846,854,559 

Gold loans  64,129,948  51,360,781 

Term loans  1,642,845  1,277,293 

Revenue from operations  1,183,558,631  899,492,633 
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18. Other income (Amount in Rs.)

Particulars 31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Interest income on Fixed deposits  8,421,274  5,466,103 

Processing charges  41,150,902  52,203,074 

Pre-Closure charges  17,026,097  7,014,338 

Other non-operating income 

 Insurance Commission  2,665,566  2,267,244 

 Miscellaneous income  21,907,968  22,890,516 

Total other income  91,171,806  89,841,276 

19. Employee benefits expense

Particulars 31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Salaries, wages, bonus and other allowances  267,675,045  254,758,105 

Contribution to provident and other funds  9,695,360  7,118,977 

Gratuity expenses  697,634  1,000,000 

Staff welfare expenses  1,383,771  1,148,849 

Total Employee benefits expense  279,451,810  264,025,932 

20. Finance cost

Particulars 31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Interest expense

On debentures  115,614,141  68,322,516 

On Securitisation  90,254,270  29,695,360 

On Loans  389,885,917  323,336,270 

 595,754,328  421,354,146 

Other Borrowings Costs  25,681,011  16,493,978 

Bank charges  1,342,974  1,496,718 

Total Finance cost  622,778,313  439,344,842 

21. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Particulars 31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019
Gross amount required to be spent  1,471,972  1,361,976 
Amount Spent during the year  1,063,280  371,736 
Balance Amount required to be spend  408,692  990,240 
CSR Expenditure During the year  1,063,280  371,736 

22. Depreciation and amortization expense

Particulars 31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

on tangible assets (Refer note 9)  11,534,088  8,068,887 

on intangible assets (Refer note 10)  1,416,421  633,901 

Total Depreciation and amortization expense  12,950,509  8,702,788 
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23. Other Expenses (Amount in Rs.)

Particulars 31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Power & Fuel  4,171,535  2,843,335 

Rent  37,175,250  29,113,685 

Office Maintenance  10,735,225  6,994,656 

Repairs and maintenance - Buildings  686,933  60,834 

Repairs and maintenance - Vehicles  794,954  872,814 

Repairs and maintenance - Others  5,030,854  2,125,637 

Rates and taxes  11,481,991  10,106,839 

Director Sitting Fee  105,000  70,000 

Donations  16,240  1,073,426 

Travelling expenses  26,042,468  21,944,646 

Auditor’s remuneration (Refer note below)  760,000  660,000 

Printing and stationery  3,845,256  3,464,284 

Communication expenses  8,899,757  8,640,285 

Legal and professional charges  33,046,054  31,421,609 

Advertisement and publicity  2,188,289  1,175,104 

Business promotion expenses  26,860,420  29,164,525 

Repossion charges  9,385,542  3,609,476 

Stamping charges  1,603,858  1,939,155 

Loss on sale of Fixed asset  1,189,449  446,348 

Provision for Standard Assets  (268,702)  3,073,367 

Provision on Moratorium assets (Refer note no 31)  4,794,339  - 

Provision for NPA  5,623,750  6,128,134 

Bad Debts  68,000,527  30,994,364 

Miscellaneous expenses  3,845,744  1,695,669 

Total Other expenses  266,014,735  197,618,192 

Note: The following is the break-up of Auditors remuneration (Exclusive of tax)

Particulars 31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

As auditor:

Statutory audit  600,000  600,000 

GST Audit  150,000  - 

Reimbursement of Expenses  10,000  - 

Total  760,000  600,000 
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

1. Corporate Information/Background 
 Kanakadurga Finance limited is a Non-Banking Finance Company incorporated under Companies act, 1956 duly 

registered with the Reserve Bank of India and Ministry of Corporate affairs. It provides financial services to various 
customers by way of hypothecation of vehicles, loans against gold jewellery and general finance. The company’s 
registered office is in Vijayawada. The registration details are as follows:

 Reserve Bank of India  : B-09.00204
 Corporate Identity Number (CIN) : U65921AP1994PLC018605

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

a. Basis of Preparation
 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 

in India (Indian GAAP) under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis in compliance with reference 
to RBI guidelines and all material aspects of the Accounting Standards (AS) notified under section 133 of the 
Companies Act 2013, read together with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014. The accounting 
policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements have been consistently applied. 

 All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating 
cycle, and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of 
business and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash 
equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-
current classification of assets and liabilities. 

b. Use of estimates
 The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make judgments, estimates and 

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and disclosure 
of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although, these estimates are based on the 
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and 
estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or 
liabilities in future periods.

c. Property, Plant and Equipment
 Tangible assets
 Tangible assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises 

the purchase price, borrowing costs, if capitalization criteria are met and any cost attributable to bringing the 
assets to its working condition for its intended use which includes taxes, freight, and installation and allocated 
incidental expenditure during construction/ acquisition and exclusive of Input tax credit (IGST/CGST and SGST) 
or other tax credit available to the Company.

 Subsequent expenditure relating to tangible assets is capitalized only if such expenditure results in an increase 
in the future benefits from such asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.

 Intangible assets
 An intangible asset is recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits attributable to the 

asset will flow to the enterprise and where its cost can be reliably measured. Intangible assets are stated at 
cost of acquisition less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase 
price and any cost attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use which 
includes taxes, freight, and installation and allocated incidental expenditure during construction/ acquisition 
and exclusive of Input tax credit (IGST/CGST and SGST) or other tax credit available to the Company.

 Subsequent expenditure relating to intangible assets is capitalized only if such expenditure results in an 
increase in the future benefits from such asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.
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d. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
 Based on management’s evaluation, useful life prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 represent 

actual useful life of property, plant and equipment. The Company uses Straight line method and has used 
following useful lives to provide depreciation of different class of its property, plant and equipment. 

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2020
(Useful life in years)

Computer 3

Buildings 60

Plant & Machinery 15

Furniture and fixtures 10

Office equipment 5

Vehicle 8

 The Company has adopted Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 which requires identification and 
determination of separate useful life for each major component of the property, plant and equipment, if they 
have useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining asset. (Component Accounting)

 Depreciation on addition to tangible assets is provided on pro-rata basis from the date the assets are ready 
for intended use. Depreciation on sale/discard from tangible assets is provided for upto the date of sale, 
deduction or discard of tangible assets as the case may be.

 Assets costing Rs.5,000 or less are depreciated @ 100% in the year of put to use.

e. Amortization of Intangible assets
 Amortization of intangible assets has been calculated on straight line basis at the following rates, based on 

management estimates, which in the opinion of the management are reflective of the estimated useful lives 
of the Intangible assets.

Particulars Useful life (In years)
Computer Software
 - ERP 3
 - Other than ERP 3

 Amortization on addition to intangible assets is provided on pro-rata basis from the date the assets are ready 
for intended use. Amortization on sale/discard from intangible assets is provided for upto the date of sale, 
deduction or discard of intangible assets as the case may be.

 Individual intangible assets costing Rs. 5,000 or less are fully amortized in the year of purchase. 

f. Impairment of Assets
 The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment 

based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset 
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the assets’ net selling price and 
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value at 
the weighted average cost of capital.

 After impairment, depreciation/amortization is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its 
remaining useful life.

g. Borrowing Costs
 Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement 

of borrowings. All other borrowing costs are recognised as expenditure in the period in which they are incurred.
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h. Revenue recognition
 Revenue is recognized to the extent, that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company 

and the revenue can be reliably measured. 

1. Interest Income from Hypothecated loans is accounted on the basis of the internal rate of return 
method.

2. Income from other financing activities including gold loans is recognized on accrual basis

3. Additional financial charges are accounted for as and when received.

i. Retirement and other employee benefits
 Defined contribution plan
 The Company makes defined contribution to Government Employee Provident Fund, Government Employee 

Pension Fund, Employee Deposit Linked Insurance & ESI, which are recognized in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss on accrual basis.

 The Company has no further obligations under these plans beyond its monthly contributions.

 Defined Benefit Plan- Gratuity
 The Company provides for retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity. Benefits payable to eligible employees 

of the company with respect to gratuity, a defined benefit plan is accounted for on the basis of an actuarial 
valuation as at the Balance Sheet date. In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the plan provides 
for lump sum payments to vested employees on retirement, death while in service or on termination of 
employment an amount equivalent to 15 days basic salary for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs 
upon completion of five years of service. The present value of such obligation is determined by the projected 
unit credit method and adjusted for past service cost and fair value of plan assets as at the balance sheet date 
through which the obligations are to be settled. The resultant actuarial gain or loss on change in present value 
of the defined benefit obligation or change in return of the plan assets is recognised as an income or expense 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The expected return on plan assets is based on the assumed rate of return 
of such assets. The Company contributes to a fund set up by Life Insurance Company of India managed by the 
Company.

 Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when incurred.

j. Cash and cash equivalents
 Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits with banks, other short term highly liquid 

investments with original maturities of three months or less.

k. Income taxes
 Tax expense for the period comprises of current tax, tax paid for previous years and deferred tax.

 Provision for current tax is made on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current accounting year in 
accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961.

 Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the 
recognised amounts, and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis. 

 The deferred tax for timing differences between the book and tax profits for the year is accounted for, using 
the tax rates and laws that have been substantively enacted as of the reporting date. 

 Deferred tax charge or credit reflects the tax effects of timing differences between accounting income and 
taxable income for the period. The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities 
or assets are recognised using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance 
sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the 
assets can be realized in future; however, where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward of losses, 
deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is a virtual certainty of realization of such assets. Deferred 
tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are written down or written up to reflect the amount 
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that is reasonably/virtually certain (as the case may be) to be realized. At each reporting date, the Company 
reassesses the unrecognized deferred tax assets, if any.

l. Leases

 Where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased item, 
are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

m Contingent Liability, Provisions and Contingent Asset
 The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably 

requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. 

 A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that 
probably will not require an outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be 
made. Contingent assets are neither recorded nor disclosed in the financial statements.

n. Earnings Per Share
 Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 

shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number 
of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity 
share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during 
the reporting period. 

 The weighted average numbers of equity shares are adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in 
the rights issue, share split and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of 
equity shares outstanding, without corresponding change in resources. 

 For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to 
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted 
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

o. Segment Reporting
 The Board of Directors of the company is of opinion that there is no separate reportable segment as per 

Accounting Standard-17, as the operations of the company are in the nature of an integrated system of 
function.

p. Corporate Social Responsibility
 As the Company is making contribution to the fund as specified in Schedule VII to the Act, it is treated as an 

expense and hence charged to the statement of profit and loss. 
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24. Earnings per Share (EPS) (Amount in Rs.)

Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Profit/ (loss) after tax 7,23,04,109 5,62,84,157
Net profit/ (loss) for calculation of basic EPS 7,23,04,109 5,62,84,157
Net profit as above 7,23,04,109 5,62,84,157
Add: interest on Debentures convertible into equity shares (net 
of tax)

- -

Net profit/ (loss) for calculation of diluted EPS 7,23,04,109 5,62,84,157

Particulars 31st March 2020
Number of shares

31st March 2019
Number of shares

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic 
EPS

1,52,17,163 1,52,17,163

Effect of dilution:
Weighted average of potential equity shares on account of 
Convertible Debentures

- -

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating 
diluted EPS

 1,52,17,163 1,52,17,163

Basic EPS 
Computed on the basis of total profit for the year  4.75 3.70
Diluted EPS
Computed on the basis of total profit for the year 4.75 3.70

25. In accordance with the Accounting Standard-15 ‘Employee Benefits’, the Company has calculated the various benefits 
provided to employees as under:

A. Defined contribution plans
a. Provident fund
b. Employee State Insurance Fund
c. Employees deposit linked insurance fund

 During the period the Company has recognized the following amounts in the Statement of profit and loss:-

(Amount in Rs.)
Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Employers Contribution to Provident fund 47,29,124 28,59,836
Employers Contribution to Employee state insurance 46,55,204 42,92,730

93,84,328 71,52,566

B. Defined benefit plans and Other long-term benefits
a. Contribution to gratuity funds – Employee’s gratuity fund (Defined benefit plan)
 In accordance with Accounting Standard 15, an actuarial valuation was carried out in respect of the 

aforesaid defined benefit plans based on the following assumptions.
I. Actuarial assumptions

Particulars
Employee gratuity (funded)

31st March 20
Discount rate (per annum) 7.25% p. a
Expected Rate of return on plan assets. 15%
Mortality Rate LIC (2006-08) ultimate
Retirement age 60 years
Average attained age 36.38
Withdrawal Rate 1% to 3% depending on age
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 The discount rate assumed is 7.25% per annum which is determined by reference to market yield at the Balance 
Sheet date on government bonds. The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, 
take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the 
employment market.

ii. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation in respect of Gratuity (funded) are as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Present value obligation as at the beginning of the year 29,18,1344 19,84,596
Interest cost - -
Current service cost 6,97,634 10,00,000
Benefits paid - (177,693)
Actuarial loss/(gain) on obligations 2,08,824 111,231
Present value obligation as at the end of the year 38,24,592 29,18,134

iii. Changes in the fair value of plan assets

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Fair value of plan assets as at the beginning of the year 29,18,134 19,84,596
Expected return on plan assets 2,49,591 1,74,354
Contributions 6,97,634 10,00,000
Benefits paid (177,693)
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets (40,767) (111,231)
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 38,24,592 29,18,134

iv Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation and fair value of assets

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Present value obligation as at the end of the year 38,24,592 29,18,134

Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 38,24,592 29,18,134

v. Expenses recognized in Statement of profit and loss - Rs 6,97,634

 General Description of the Plan
 The Company operates gratuity plan through a trust wherein every employee is entitled to the benefit equivalent 

to fifteen days salary last drawn for each completed year of service. The same is payable on termination of 
service or retirement, whichever is earlier. The benefit vests after five years of continuous service. In case of 
some employees, the Company’s scheme is more favorable as compared to the obligation under Payment of 
Gratuity Act, 1972.

26. Related Party Disclosures
 In accordance with the requirement of Accounting Standard (AS)- 18 on “Related Party Disclosures’ the names of the 

related parties where control exists /able to exercise significant influence along with the aggregate transactions/year 
end balances with them as identified and certified by the management are given below:

(a) Names of the Related Parties and Related Party Relationship
 Other related parties with whom transactions have been taken place during the period 

Relationship Name of Party
Entities under common control 
of any Individual

1. Kanakadurga Financial Services Limited
2. Kanakadurga Foundation
3. Sandireddy Lakshmi Narayana Ratna Kumari Foundation
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Key Management Personnel and 
their relative:

1. S. Lakshmi Narayana, Whole time Director
2. S. Ratna Kumari, Whole-time Director
3. S. Jayaprakash Narayana Chowdary, Managing Director
4. S. Srimannarayana, Managing Director cum Chief Financial Officer 
5. Alla Lakshmi Sowjanya, Company Secretary (w.e.f 05-07-2019)
6. Krishna Mohan Reddy, Company secretary (Resigned from 04-07-

2019)

 (b) Transactions with the Related Parties  (Amount in Rs.) 

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel
1. S. Lakshmi Narayana, Managing Director
2. S. Ratna Kumari, Whole-time Director
3. S. Jayaprakash Narayana Chowdary, Whole-time Director
4. S. Srimannarayana, Whole-time Director cum Chief Financial 

Officer
5. A. L. Sowjanya, Company Secretary
6. Krishna Mohan Reddy, Company Secretary

50,00,004
50,00,004
50,00,004
50,00,004

8,87,103
-

50,00,000
50,00,000
50,00,000
50,00,000

-
8,00,000

Rent Expense 
1. Mr. Sandireddy Lakshmi Narayana 
2. S. Ratna Kumari 

37,92,000
37,92,000

15,80,000
15,80,000

(c) Outstanding balances  (Amount in Rs.)

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Security deposit-Rent 
1.  Mr. Sandireddy Lakshmi Narayana and S. Ratna Kumari 36,00,000 36,00,000

27. Contingent liabilities not provided for- (Amount in Rs.)

Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt (Refer 
footnote 1) 10,77,561 -

10,77,561 -

 Footnote 1: During the year, the Company received a demand for Income tax aggregating to Rs. 17,38,046 (Previous 
year Rs. Nil) for the Assessment year 2017-18. Of which Company has agreed and paid for Rs.6,60,485. Company is in 
appeal with CIT(A).

28. There are no amounts due to Small Scale industries in terms of “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
Act, 2006 

29. The company has complied with the prudential norms relating to income recognition, accounting standards, asset 
classification and provisioning for bad and doubtful debts as applicable to it as per the Master Directions-Non-
Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016. The company has Standard 
Assets to the tune of Rs.471.36 Crores and Non-Performing Assets to the tune of Rs.14.14 Crores. The company has 
NPA provision of Rs.1.52 Crores and has made a general provision @0.25% of the outstanding Standard Assets which 
comes to Rs.0.95 Crores.

30. A novel stain of Coronavirus (COVID-19) that first surfaced in China was classified as a pandemic by the World Health 
Organization on March 11, 2020, impacting countries globally, including India. The potential impacts from COVID-19 
remains uncertain, including, among other things, on economic conditions, businesses and consumers. 
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 An estimate of the financial impact cannot be made at this point in this time as the extent to which COVID-19 pandemic 
will impact the Company’s Operations including Credit quality and provisions, will depend on future developments, 
which are highly uncertain and dependent upon the spread of COVID-19.

 In accordance with the RBI guidelines relating to COVID-19 Regulatory package dated March 27, 2020 and April 17, 
2020, the company has granted Moratorium of three months on the payment of all installments and/or interest, as 
applicable, falling due between March 1, 2020 and May 31, 2020 to all the eligible borrowers in accordance with the 
Board approved policy.

 Further in accordance with the RBI guidelines relating to COVID-19 Regulatory package dated May 23, 2020, the 
Company is now permitted to extend the moratorium by another three months on payment of all installments and/or 
Interest, as applicable, falling due between June 1, 2020 and August 31, 2020. For all such accounts where moratorium 
is granted, asset classification shall remain unchanged during the moratorium period. Interest shall continue to accrue 
on the outstanding portion of the term loans during the moratorium period.

 However, management has provided for provision as per the notification No. DOR.No.BP.BC.63/ 21.04. 048/2019-20 
dated April 17, 2020 issued by the Reserve Bank of India on COVID – 19 regulatory package – “Asset classification and 
Provisioning” as disclosed in Note no. 31(iii).

31. Asset Classification and Provisioning Disclosure
 Disclosure as per the notification No. DOR.No.BP.BC.63/21.04.048/2019-20 dated April 17, 2020 issued by the Reserve 

Bank of India on COVID – 19 regulatory package – “Asset classification and Provisioning”

 For the year Ended March,31 2020

i. Amounts in SMA /Overdue categories where moratorium/deferment was extended in terms of paragraph 2 of 
the above circular

Category  Amount (In Cr) 

 SMA-0 31.06

 SMA-1 158.73

 SMA-2 63.38

 TOTAL 253.17

ii. Respective amount where asset classification benefit is extended: Rs.10.16 Crores

iii. Provision made during quarter ended March 31,2020 in terms of paragraph 5 of the above circular@ 5%: 0.48 
Crores

iv. Provision adjusted against the respective accounting periods for slippages and residual provisions in terms of 
paragraph 6 of the above circular: Not Applicable

32. Capital to Risk (Weighted)Assets Ratio

S.No. Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

1 CRAR (%) 21.80% 21.35%

2 CRAR-Tier I Capital (%) 20.82% 19.30%

3 CRAR-Tier II Capital (%) 0.99% 2.06%

4 Tier I Capital (In Crs) 85.09 81.58

5 Tier II Capital (In Crs) 4.03 8.70
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33. In accordance with the RBI notification No.DNBS.167/CGM(OPA)-2003 dated March 29, 2003, following are the 
additional disclosure under the format as prescribed vide Paragraph 9BB of Non-Banking Financial Companies 
Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions 1998 and as required in terms of paragraph 13 of Non-Banking Financial 
(Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007.

 Schedule to the Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2020
 [as prescribed under Paragraph 18 of Non-Banking Financial Company - Non-Systemically Important Non-Deposit 

Taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016]

Sr.
No.

Particulars (Amount in Rs.)
Liabilities side:  March 31, 2020

(1) Loans and advances availed by the non-banking finance company 
inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:

Amount 
outstanding

Amount 
overdue

(a) Debentures : Secured 52,00,00,000 Nil 
   : Unsecured  30,79,22,355 Nil 
 (other than falling within the meaning of public deposits*)
(b) Deferred Credits  Nil  Nil 
(c) Term Loans  2,36,14,13,605  Nil 
(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowings Nil  Nil 
(e) Commercial Paper Nil  Nil 
(f) Other Loans - Cash Credit Facility  45,53,84,333  Nil 
*Please see Note 1 below

 Assets side: Amount outstanding 
(2) Break-up of Loans and Advances:

March 31, 2020
(a) Secured 3,95,80,71,758
(b) Unsecured Nil
Asset Side:

(3) Other Information:
Category
1. Gross Non-Performing Assets
 (a) Related party
 (b) Other than related parties 
2. Net Non-Performing Assets
 (a) Related party
 (b) Other than related parties 

March 31, 2020
Nil
Nil

14,14,03,689
Nil
Nil

12,61,60,703
Notes:  
1. As defined in point (xix) of paragraph 3 of Chapter 2 of the Non-Banking Financial Company - Non-Systemically 

Important Non-Deposit Taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.
2. Provisioning norms applicable are as prescribed in the Non-Banking Financial Company - Non-Systemically 

Important Non-Deposit Taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

34. Disclosures Relating to Securitization   (Amount in Crores)

Sr.
No. Particulars As at March 31, 

2020
As at March 

31, 2019
1 No of SPVs sponsored by the NBFC for securitisation transactions* (in 

No.)
12 6

2 Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs Sponsored 222.44 98.62
3 Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with MRR as 

on the date of Balance Sheet
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 (a)  Off-Balance Sheet exposures 88.25 68.12 
  First loss - -
  Others - -
 (b) On-Balance Sheet exposures   
  First loss 25.42 6.72
  Others 0.00 0.00
4 Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions other   
 than MRR   
 (a) Off-Balance Sheet exposures   
  (i) Exposure to own securitisations   
   First loss - -
   Loss - - 
  (ii) Exposure to third party securitisations   
   First loss - -
   Others - - 
 (b) On-Balance Sheet exposures
  (i) Exposure to own securitisations   
   First loss 10.82 4.58
   Others - - 
  (ii) Exposure to third party securitisations   
   First loss - -
   Others - -

35. In the opinion of the Board, the Current assets and loans and advances are approximately of the value stated, if 
realized in the ordinary course or business, except otherwise stated. The provision for all the known liabilities is 
adequate and not in excess of amount considered reasonably necessary.

 Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified, where necessary, to conform to this year’s classification.

As per our report of even date

For MSKA & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants KANAKADURGA FINANCE LIMITED
Firm Registration No:105047W 

Ananthakrishnan G S. Lakshmi Narayana S.J.P. Narayana
Partner Director Managing Director
Membership No:205226 DIN:00538185 DIN:00538246

 S. Srimannarayana A.L. Sowjanya
Place: Vijayawada Managing Director Cum CFO Company Secretary
Date: 20-08-2020 DIN:00538273 Membership No:44779
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PLEASE FILL ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER 
AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING HALL

ATTENDANCE SLIP

DP ID Folio No./ 
Client ID

No. of 
Shares

NAME OF THE MEMBER:

NAME OF THE PROXY:

I hereby record my/our presence at the 26th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company held on Monday, the 14th day 
of September, 2020 at 11.00 A.M. at Registered Office of the Company at 54-9-23, 100 Feet Road, Auto Nagar, Vijayawada 
- 520007.

Signature of the Shareholder/Proxy: _________________________
(Only shareholders/proxies are allowed to attend the meeting)

KANAKADURGA FINANCE LIMITED
PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014]

Name of the 
Member(s): E-mail ID:

Registered 
address:

Folio No./ Client ID:

DP ID:

I / We being the member(s) of Kanakadurga Finance Limited and holding ………………......…………………………………………………shares, hereby 
appoint -

1) ………………………………………………………………… of……………………………………… having email id……………………………………… or failing him

2) ………………………………………………………………… of……………………………………… having email id……………………………………… or failing him

3) ………………………………………………………………… of……………………………………… having email id……………………………………… 

and whose signature(s) are appended below as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our 
behalf at the 26th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company to be held on Monday, the 14th day of September, 2020 
at 11.00 A.M. at Registered Office of the Company at 54-9-23, 100 Feet Road, Auto Nagar, Vijayawada - 520007 and at any 
adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

I wish my above proxy to vote in the manner as indicated in the box below: (This is optional)

(Please put a tick in the appropriate column as indicated below. If you leave columns blank in any or all the resolutions, your 
Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate.)
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Resolution No Subject matter of the Resolution For Against

Ordinary Business

1 Adoption of Financial Statements and Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors 
thereon for the year ended 31st March, 2020.

2 To appoint a Director in the place of Mr. Jayaprakash Narayana Chowdary Sandireddy 
(DIN: 00538246), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offer himself for re 
appointment 

Signed this  day of ………………………………………………………………… 2020

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
Signature of first proxy holder Signature of second proxy holder Signature of third proxy holder

Notes:
1. This form of Proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the 

Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.
2. A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

Signature of 
shareholder 
across Rs. 1 

Revenue stamp 
affix here
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KANAKADURGA 
F I N A N C E    L I M I T E D

YOUR PROSPERITY OUR PRIORITY

Registered Office: 54-9-23, 100 Feet Road, Auto Nagar, Vijayawada – 520 007, Krishna, AP
CIN: U65921AP1994PLC018605, Phone: 0866-2484034,

E Mail: cs@kanakadurgafinance.com  Website: www. Kanakadurgafinance.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP
26th Annual General Meeting (AGM) - 14th September, 2020 at 11.00 AM

Folio No. / DP ID No. / Client ID No.

Name and registered address of the member

Name(s) of the Joint Holder(s) if any

Number of Shares held

Full Name of the Proxy (IN BLOCK LETTERS)

I certify that, I am a member/proxy for the member of the Company. I hereby record my presence at the 26th Annual General 
Meeting of the Company held on 14th September, 2020 at 11:00 A.M. at the Corporate Office of the Company at 54-9-23, 
Opp: IOC Petrol Bunk, 100 Feet Road, Auto Nagar, Vijayawada – 520007, Andhra Pradesh.

SIGNATURE OF THE MEMBER/PROXY

1. Members are requested to handover the attendance slip, duly signed in accordance with their specimen signature(s) 
registered with the Company for admission to the meeting hall. Members/Proxy holders are requested to bring their 
copies of the Annual Report to the AGM.

2. Only members/representatives of the Corporate members or proxies are allowed to attend the AGM. Bodies Corporate, 
whether a company or not, who are members, may attend through their authorized representatives appointed under 
Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act). A copy of authorization should be deposited with the Company.
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Registered Office :

KANAKADURGA FINANCE LIMITED
# 54-9-23, 100 Ft. Road, Auto Nagar,

Vijayawada, Krishna Dist, Andhra Pradesh - 500 007.
www.kanakadurgafinance.com


